
unire o NATIONS

SOCIAL

"', ';

UN LI~RAR'1

MA'f 4 \977

MNlSA .COLLE:C1l0~

~\
~

COUNCil ~

Distr.
GENERAL

E/c.10/sR.26
3 Hay 1977
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL: SPANISH

CO~~~ISSION ON TRANSNATIONAL CORPORATIONS

Third session

SU!yjHARY RECORD OF THE 26th MEETING

Held at HeadQuarters, New York,
on Thursday, 28 April 1977, at 10.30 a.m.

Chairman: Mr. FASLA (Algeria)

CONTENTS

Election of officers (continued)

Technical co-operation (continued)

Studies on the effects of the operations and practices of transnational corporations

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the wor-k i ng languages, preferably in
the same language as the text to which they refer. They should be set forth in a
memorandum and also, if possible, incorporated in a copy of the record. They should
be sent within one week of the date of this document to the Chief, Official Records
Editing Section, Department of Conference Services, room LX-2332.

Any corrections to the records of the meetings of this session will be
consolidated in a single corrigendum, to be issued shortly after the end of the
session.

77-55742 I ...



E/C.IO/SR.26
English
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.55 a.m.

ELECTION OF OFFICERS (continued)

1. Mr. BHATT (India)? speaking on behalf of the group of Asian States, nominated
Hr. Qadrud-Din (Pak i s t.an ) for the office of third V.i ce-Chaf rman .

2. Mr. HEININGER (German Democratic Repub.Li c ), on behalf of the group of
Socialist States of Eastern Europe, Mr. AISSA (Alg~ria)? on behalf of the group of
African States, Hr 0 RUBIN (United StateS-of America)? and Hr. CRUZ (Mexico), on
behalf of the Group of Latin American States 0 supported that nomination.

3. Mr. Qadrud·-Din ,·ras elected third Vice~Chairman by acclamation.

TECHNICAL CO-OPERATION (E/C.IO/29) (continued)

~. Mr. 'I'ARZI (Director? Division of Recruitment? Office of Personnel Services)
said, wi.t.h regard to the question of the roster of experts under consideration by
the Commission" that the Division of Recruitment had a computerized roster which
included some 5,000 candidates classified by 53 areas of specialization, which
were, in turn, subdivided into more specific areas of specialization such as, for
example, international economy and, wi thin that, the field of transnational
corporations. One hundred and thirty-one countries from all parts of the world
vere represented on the roster. A list of candidates prepared by computers vas
normally distributed to permanent missions, national recruitment services, the
specialized agencies and the regional commissions. In consultation with the
Centre on Transnational Corporations, a docurr~nt on international recruitment in the
field of the activities of the Centre, describing briefly its advisory and training
services and the professional qualifications which candidates should have, had
recently been prepared. The document had already been sent to t1inistries of
Foreign Affairs and other sources of candidates ~ and it was planned to distribute
it to permanent missions. Hith regard to candidates from the developing
countries" the Division was making specia.l efforts to recruit increasing numbers
of experts from those countries.

5. ~1r. BHATT (India) requested that the information provided by the Director of
the Division of Recruitment of the Office of Personnel Services should be
circulated.

6. Mr. RUBIN (United States of America) supported the request of the
representative of India and, with regard to the sugeestion made by the
representative of Argentina at the previous meeting, that informal round tables
should be held, said that his delegation hoped that that proposal could be put
into practice.

7. tir. BRUCE (Canada) also supported the proposal of the Argentine
representative and proposed that delegations should transmit to the Rapporteur the

/ ...



E/C.IO/SB..26
English
Pae;e 3

(Mr. Bruce, Canada)

questions vrhich, in their opinion, could be considered at such round t~)les, so
that their v i ews could be duly reflected in the Commi s s i on ' s report.

{3. The CHAIRMAN said that the Secretariat had t.aken note of the concern of the
representative of India, and he announced that the third question put at the
previous meeting to the persons selected by the Commission to assist it in its
wor-k had been vit.hdravn .

STUDIES ON THE EFFECTS OF THE OPERATIONS AND PRACTICES OF TRANSNATIONAL
CO~POP~TIONS (E/C.IO/26)

9. Mr. FIGUERERO (Argentina) said that he wouLd like to knov whet.he r the Centre
was adaptin8 its activities to the order of priorities set by the Commission for
its VTork. Specificallyo he vould like information on the stage reached by the
studies on the balance of payments, shinping, to~rrism? employment, the effects of
the activities of transnational corporations on those of local corporations and
pharmaceutical products, as weLL as on the follovr-up on the study pub.Li shed t.n

1973 (ST/ECA/190 and Corr.l) and the contents of the project on consultant
services mentioned by the Executive Director of the Centre in his report.

10. Hr. RUBIN (United States of Ameri ca ) also shoved interest in the information
requested by the representative of Argentina. The immense volume of information
whi ch had to be t aken into account and the limitation of resources, inter a.l i a ,
made it necessary to have an order of priorities in the studies prepared by the
Centre, which should concentrate on the most important questions. That would make
it possible for the studies to be circulated in time for delegations to give them
due consideration.

11. fIr. r1ATEEV (Bulgaria) said that his delegation considered the wor k done so
far by the Centre on Transnational Corporations positive, despite the problems
relating to the inSUfficiency of personnel, shortage of technical facilities and
lack of qualitative information for the operation of transnational corporations.
Among its future activities, the f'o.l.Low-vup on the 1973 document on multinational
corporations in vrorld economy (ST/ECA/190 and Cor-r v L) voul.d be particularly
important. His Government was prepared to co-operate closely with the Centre and
to contribute vi t.h i.n the limits of its possibilities? to the successful fulfilment
of its vrork .

12. ~1r. ~ERG (France) said that the Centre's programme of studies should be
carried out on a selective basis, making the best possible use of available
resources and avoiding any duplication.

13. The studies made by the Centre should not be purely academic but should serve
the priority objective set? namely? the formulation of the code of conduct and the
implementation of the technical co-operation programme. Hith regard to the
sectoral studies, the Centre might concentrate on the four studies of Hhich the
first phase had been completed and a f'ev more whi ch could be determined by a small
group of deLegat.Lons , wi t.h the collaboration of the Rapporteur; new priorities
could be set later.

/ ...



8/C .10/8:::L26
English
Page 4

14. hiss J:ijIJELLEH (United Kinp;dom) said that she felt that the Centre's worki.ng
capacity had perhaps been overburdened and that it voul.d be better if, at the
current session, the Commission concentrated on evaluation of the prop;ress made
and the setting of specific priorities for the Centre 1 s future work , uithout
addin~ new proposals or broadening the progranrr.1e of study agreed upon at the
second session. She agreed "lvith the representative of France that the Centre's
Hork should be concentrated mainly op the formulation of the code of conduct and
the implementation of the technical co-operation programme. The Argentine
representative 1s proposal to hold informal meetin~s to study the preparation of
the code of conduct in :zreater detail was also wor-t.h cons i der i ng .

15. She felt that it was necessary to place greater stress on the quality of the
studies carried out rather than on their quantity and that it "Tas not necessary
for the Commission to undert.ake to carry out or finance all the investigations
Hhicl! the Commission considered desirable: they could utilize the many studies
already made on transnational corporations by different organizations in various
countries. Various projects in the :programme of studies \Tere being carried out in
co-operation vi t.h other bodies, such as UNCTAD and UNIDO, and it vro u.l d also be
possible to promote the vork of independent scholars and have them deal w-ith
subjects which required objective examination. The activities of the Centre
itself should be concentrated in one or two important sectors in order thus to put
to the test the methodology that Fas to be used.

16. Furthermore, the Co@uission should not exercise detailed control over all
aspects of the Centre I s Horl\:, because it wou.ld make its wor-k excessively
difficult. It was important to maintain the Centre v s independence, but she hoped
that Governments wouLd be ab Le to contribute to its work , by making available the
knmrledge and experience at their disposal. Details on the plan of studies for
each year C' the objectives and methods of each study, its author, the schedule for
its completion, the portion of the budp;et to be allocated to it and the progress
made should be included in future reports of the ~xecutive Director. v7hile it
woul.d not be appropriate to lay down strict rules for the conduct of studies, it
might be useful in some cases to consult those Governments cThich had a special
interest in the question under consideration.

17. ~'Jr. IHA1'1 (Kuwait) felt that the International HorJdng GrouJl had little
information on the question of constrner protection. Often many industrialized
countries prohibited domestic consumption of harmful products but did nothing to
stop their corporations exporting them to the developing countries, vh i ch Here
sometimes unaware of their dangerousness. His delegation proposed that the Centre
should be requested to prepare a document on consumer protection, summarizing the
principle findings and conclusions so far and making recommendations for the
protection of consumers in the developing countries. In view of the advanced
stage of studies already made in that field, a recapitulation could be made
relatively quickly and easily.

/ ...



E/C.IO/SR.26
English
Page 5

18. Mr. RUBIN (United States of America), referring to the suggestion made by the
representative of Kuwait, said that, in many cases, particularly those involving
the export of products financed by government organizations, the Government of
the United States required a statement of the possible environmental effects of such
products. Although that procedure was not applied generally, it undoubtedly
constituted a valuable precedent. In that connexion, one of the tasks of the
Centre could be to consider similar measures adopted by various Governments.

19. Mr. HEININGER (German Democratic Republic) said that international political
and economic development since the second session of the Commission had confirmed
the importance of the task it was carrying out. The negative impact of the
activities of transnational corporations on international relations had continued
and even increased, particularly in the developing countries; studies should be
done on the situation and effective measures adopted to put an end to it. At the
same time, it had been demonstrated that a close relationship existed between such
measures and progress towards detente and international security.

20. The work priorities of the Centre should be established on the basis of the
requests contained in the report on the Commission's second session. It was
important to continue with the study on transnational corporations in world
development and to deal with such basic aspects as origin, regional and sectoral
distribution of the foreign activities of transnational corporations, their
political effects in the host countries and in international relations, and their
social and cultural consequences. Accordingly the results of research projects
carried out by various countries and by special United Nations bodies should be
included in the future document; the most important transnational corporations
should also be studied in detail on a country by country basis.

21. His delegation considered the studies currently being carried out on
strengthening the negotiating capacity of the developing countries to be very
useful. Emphasis should also be given to studies of the role of transnational
corporations in international banking and their influence in the food and beverages
industries, which were of particular importance for the developing countries.

22. Mr. SHCHETININ (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that the
transnational corporations continued to engage in activities which violated the
fundamental principles of international law and the United Nations Charter. The
Commission should concentrate on the main questions and should not become bogged
down in details. The Centre should co-ordinate its activities with those of other
United Nations bodies in order to avoid duplication, and should establish priorities
in its research in the light of the observations made in the Commission, which
should be informed of projected activities.

23. The political aspects of the activities of transnational corporations conspired
against detente, and against peace and security. The military industrial complexes
and monopolies operating in the colonial countries contrived to create explosive
situations resulting in the deaths of many thousands of people. The economic and
social situation of workers was adversely affected by the activities - sometimes
clandestine - of transnational corporations designed to restrict the right to work
and to infringe trade union rights and social security provisions. That was all

/ ...



E/C.lO/SR.26
English
Page 6

(Mr. Shchetinin o USSR)

contrary to Article 55 of the United Nations Charter, which called for the promotion
of "b i ghe r standards of living, full employment, and conditions of economic and
social progress and development H

•

24. Miss MUELLER (United Kingdom), referring to the proposal that priority should
be given to research on the political, social and cultural effects of the activities
of transnational corporations, said that such questions, although important, were
difficult and were currently being discussed in the Working Group on the Code of
Conduct. At the current stage, what was needed was not more research, but a
continuation of those discussions. The Commission had assigned the highest priority
firstly to the formulation of the code of conduct, and secondly to technical
co-operation. As one of the persons chosen by the Commission to assist it in its
work had suggested, the transnational corporations should be more sensitive to the
needs of host countries. However, that was a problem which would not be solved by
research.

25. Mr. BENAVIDES (Peru) said that research on transnational corporations occupied
an important place in the efforts to achieve a new international economic order.
The role of transnational corporations as a central factor in the world economy
and as economic units which, in many cases, were almost independent of national
States, was a recent phenomenon. As the report of the Executive Director
(E/C.IO/30) showed, many of the areas in which studies were envisaged were virtually
untouched by independent research, thus demonstrating the enormous importance of the
Centre's activities.

26. Mr. MATEEV (Bulgaria) recalled that the primary objective of the programme of
work adopted by the Commission at its second session was 'to further understanding
of the nature and the political, legal, economic and social effects of the
activities of transnational corporations (E/C.IO/16, para. 6 (a)).

27. Mr. RUBIN (United States of America) said that it was a mistake to refer in
general to lItransnational corporations" - a term which was as yet undefined by the
Commission - without distinguishing, for example, between enterprises involved in
the extractive industries and those involved in marketing, or between those involved
in heavy industry and those involved in light industry. Such differences in turn
signified differences in such areas as capital, infrastructure and total investment
in the host country, and therefore differences in the mobility of transnational
corporations and in the interest taken by host countries in their activities.

28. Mr. GUNTHER (Federal Republic of Germany) supported the idea of establishing
an order of priorities, in view of the limited resources available, and noted that,
in document E/C.IO/16, referred to by the representative of Bulgaria, the highest
priority had been assigned firstly to the drafting of a code of conduct and
secondly to the establishment of a comprehensive information system. He supported
the position adopted by the representatives of the United Kingdom and the United
States to the effect that the work of the Centre should be focused on those two
areas. He also believed that the Centre should make full use of the work done in
the rest of the United Nations system and, after reading document E/C.IO/28, he
was fully confident that such would be the case. He emphasized the importance of
research work, such as that referred to in paragraph 29 (e) of document E/C.IO/16.

/ ...



E/C,lO/SR.26
English
Page 7

29, lv:ir ..Y.1GUERERO (Argentina) asked whet.he r a summary was being prepared of the
material being studied by the Centre, Such a summary vrou.l.d be very useful since
the information it provided could be t.aken into account by the Commission in
carrying out its work , He I{01J.ld also lilee to know what vas the status of the
quarterly publication which was to summarize the worle of the Co~nission and the
Centre? and vhet.her it would be possible to include in the studies to be prepared
by the Centre a bibliography of the material used and information on the persons
consulted,

30. ~1r.__§~NDER~ (Netherlands) said that the Centre should focus its research on
questions wh i ch wer-e closely related to the formulation of the code of conduct
and to increasing the negotiating capacity of host countries. Related questions~

such as the settlement of disputes, cotud be studied later.

31. Mr~QUE~~Il! (Italy) repeated that the Centre 1s activities were subject to
strict budgetary limitations. Accordingly? the Centre lIould have to concentrate
on the two priority areas set by the Commission: elaboration of a code of conduct
and technical co-operation.

32. Mr. JIMINEZ DE LUCIO (Deputy Executive Director of the Centre on
~lransnationalCorporatic>;;-s) said that each of the nine studies making up the
prograrr@e of the Centre had been divided into four phases. The first consisted of
an over-val.L r ev i ew of all available material on the item and an appraisal of the
aspects that wer e particularly relevant for attaining the priority objectives
which the Centre had set: a code of conduct for transnational corporations and
the pr-ogr-amme of technical cc-oper-at i on . As the General Assembly had not approved
the Centre: s budget estimates for the implementation of the programme in their
entirety" some projects had had to be postponed but none of them had been cancelled.
Different deadlines had been set for the various studies: the study on the
activities of transnational corporations in southern Africa had been completed in
one year while two or three years had been a.LLowed for other studies. \·lhen it
was stated that some, projects had already been completed that meant only the first
phase of the study whos e results wer e not going to be published but vrou.l d lay the
basis and the methodology for future work. Nor were all proposed studies of the
same scope; in any event attempts had been made to avoid unnecessary duplication.

33. The integrated study of the political, legal ~ econom.ic and social
repercussions of the operations and practices of transnational corporations,
which was to comp.Lemerrt the study published in 1973 (ST/ECA/190 and Cor-r ,1), vras
under way and it ,-TaS hoped that it would be ready for the next session of the
Commission. The publication CTC Reporter, the second issue of which vTas about to
appear wou.Ld probably serve to keep members of the Commission informed as to
ongoing activities and as to various aspects related to transnational corporations.

34. Co-ordination with other organs was a basic function of the preliminary
research. The Centre had contacted ILO in connexi on wi t.h its r-es earch into
emp'l.oyment , UNCTAD regarding research into the merchant marine and balance of
payments" and UNIDO (with vmich it had already started joint work) regarding
research into the mining industries' and the industrialization of the product
thereof, within the f'r-amework of the natural resources proj ect. Contacts hEH3. also
been established outside the United Nations system.

/'" .



E/C.10/SR.26
English
Page 8

35. Rlr. FIGUERERO. (Argentina) aalced when the time-·limits for the elaboration of
the studies had started and what studies would last three years rather than two.

36. 11r. JIMINEZ DE LUCIO (Deputy Executive Director of the Centre on
Transnatio~~i Corporation-s) said that the t'lm-year period was calculated from the
time when the Economic and Social Council approved the project 9 so that the
deadline for most of the projects would be 1978. The three-year projects, which
would be completed in 1979, related to employment, balance of payments, obstacles
preventing the' strengthening of Governments! negotiating capacity and measures
adopted by Governments to strengthen their negotiating capacity, insurance, the
merchant marine and the mining industries.

37. Mr. R~BIN (United States of America) suggested that the calendar of work should
be printed and circulated.

38. Mr. BERG (France) pointed out that the completion dates for the studies
mentioned-by the Deputy Executive Director had already been given on pages 26 to
30 of document A/C.5/31/25, issued on 12 November 1976, and he congratulated the
Centre on its preciseness.

39. The CHAIRl1AN said that he had been requested to ask the persons selected by
the Conwission to help it in its work for their opinion on the studies which had
been carried out, particularly in their special area of experience and competence,
and what studies could be carried out on the effects of the activities of the
transnational corporations.

40. Mrs. JAGER (Economist, American Federation of Labor and Congress of Industrial
Organization~-TAFL-CIO)),*speaking at the Chairman!s invitation, said that with
regard to the political aspects of the activities of transnational corporations,
the researchers generally tended to study issues that confirmed what they believed.
'I'hus the research did not seem to be balanced enough. Moreover, too much
emphasis was placed on the sectoral analysis ui thout sufficiently taking into
consideration the multifaceted nature of most of the national and transnational
cor'por-at i.ons , both State--owned and private. There was also the danger of
overlooking a considerable proportion of firms if the practice of basically taking
into account the most recent information was continued. It should be remembered
that only a f'ew countries required firms to present annual reports.

41. I1r. TACKE (Member of the Board of Siemens A.G., Chairman of the Board
(reti~ed)) ;:~. ;peaking at the invitation of the Chairman, said that there was so
much research into transnational corporations, that it was practically impossible
to keep abreast of it all. Hence the importance of avoiding any duplication of
efforts. The attitude of researchers was, in fact, affected by the research and
could be modified as a result of it. The recent ILO study and the report prepared
in 1974 by the Group of Bminent Persons would seem to confirm that fact.

* Persons selected by the Commission to help it In its work.

/ ...



E/C,lO/SR,26
English
Page 9

42, r·1r, SANFELICE (Economist, Horld Federation of Trade Unions (HFTU)),* speaking
at the invitation of the Chairman, said that it was very difficult to study all the
available information on transnational corporations, not only because it was very
vast but also because it vTas fragmentary, An interdisciplinary approach would
be useful, but there were some problems that did not lend themselves to such an
approach, Accordingly, in such cases it was necessary to concentrate on specific
aspects. The Centre would have to playa co-ordinating and guiding role in order
to facilitate study of the available information. As to the methodology to be
used in the studies, it should be remembered that in some areas, employment
for instance, ne'lf criteria were needed for, whereas studies carried out in that
field so rar had referred to the direct effects of activities of the
transnational corporations on employment, the indirect effects of such activities
should now be studied,

43. Mr, IVAliJOV (Chief of Economic Division, Institute for US Studies, USSR
Academy oT-Sciences), oJ< spealdng at the invitation of the Chairman, said that when
studying the activities of the transnational corporations, the political aspect
of the question should not be forgotten for it was of capital importance since
transnational corporations could influence government decisions, modify
mechanisms in negotiations with corporations of the host countries and even
overthrow Governments, For all those reasons it was of the utmost urgency to
determine in the various countries \{hich of the transnational corporations'
activities were legal and which vTere illegal. Studies on and research into banks
should not be confined solely to banking activities as such, for it was well known
that banks often exercised various types of control over industrial enterprises.
Accordingly, it should be emphasized that the banks should also be responsible
for the conduct of such enterprises.

The meeting rose at 1.15 p,m,


